

Tenant Participation Strategy April 2013 - April 2016

We want tenants and other customers to find it easy to participate in and influence our decisions, at whatever level they feel comfortable.

Tenants and other customers can get involved in our decision-making process in many ways. We hope this strategy makes it clear to our tenants and other customers that we want to shape our service to reflect their views. If you have any questions about getting involved, please don't hesitate to get in touch.

This is the full version of the Strategy. A summary leaflet is also available.

	•••••
Contents	Page
1. What is Tenant Participation?	2
2. What's in it for me?	2
3. What's in it for the Association?	2
4. Who are the Association's customers?	3
5. How we make it easy for you to participate	3
6. How we help tenants and other customers to become involved	8
7. Staff Responsible for Tenant Participation	9
8. Resources Needed for Tenant Participation	9
9. Supporting Tenants' Groups	9
10. Supporting Local Community Groups	10
11. Registering your Tenants' Group with us	10
12. Tenants and Residents Groups	11
13. Tenant Federations	11
14. A Relationship Breakdown	12
15. Removal from the Register of Tenants' Organisations	12
16. Appeals	12
17. Monitoring and Reviewing our Performance	12
18. Review of the Strategy	12
19. Contact Details	13
Action Plan 2013-2016	14-21
Appendices, forms and sample letters	22-36

Equal Opportunities Statement

The Association will not discriminate on the grounds of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage, and civil partnership, pregnancy & maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation.

If you or someone you know would like this strategy in any other format, please contact us.

www.clydebank-ha.org.uk 0141 941 1044 96% of tenants are satisfied with the service we provide Read on for some of the ways to get involved...



Clydebank Housing Association at a glance...

We are a social rented housing provider operating in Clydebank, West Dunbartonshire, for nearly 30 years. We are responsible for the management and maintenance of 1,070 homes for rent, mainly in the central Clydebank, Linnvale, Drumry, Whitecrook and Radnor Park areas of the town. We also have 59 shared ownership properties and are a factor to c. 600 owner occupiers.

During 2012 - 2013, we let 94 properties, sold 1 properties under the Right to Buy scheme and purchased 4 properties, one through the Scottish Government's Mortgage to Rent scheme. We have 853 waiting list applicants.

We own and manage a popular regeneration centre, Centre81, in Whitecrook. We have a wholly owned subsidiary providing heat and hot water to over 350 residents of Radnor Park, CHA Power Ltd.

We have a turnover from rents of just under $\pounds 3.4$ million. We have 32 staff (full time equivalent is 28.8) including caretakers, cleaners, Centre81 and temporary staff. We are run by a committee of local volunteers, our Management Committee. There is currently 12 Management Committee Members whose attendance at meetings for the year was 79.5%. We had 5.08% of days lost through staff absence in the year.

The Scottish Housing Regulator collects financial and performance information from us and uses this information to decide the level of engagement they have with us e.g. low, medium or high. The Regulator has assessed our engagement level as low meaning that it is happy with the information provided and our current performance.

As at 31 March 2013



1. What is Tenant Participation?

There are many long winded official definitions but tenant participation is about us genuinely caring about your opinion on our services, acting where at all possible on your feedback and then giving you feedback so you know how valuable your comments are to us in helping us to provide a better service.

We can help you in whatever way you feel comfortable participating and giving us your opinions. It could mean attending a one-off meeting, being involved with a residents group, or returning a questionnaire or newsletter cut-off slip to us.

We want tenants and other customers to find it easy to participate in and influence our decisions, at whatever level they feel comfortable.

2. What's in it for me?

Being involved with the Association can provide you with lots of skills and knowledge or build on skills and knowledge you already have.

We will provide individuals and groups with any training and support that they need.

3. What's in it for the Association?

If our tenants and other customers are happy we are happy! We have always embraced old and new ways to involve and consult tenants even before the Housing (Scotland) Act 2001 made it legislation. We were founded by members of the local community in 1984, two of which currently serve on our voluntary management committee.

We recognise the importance of tenant participation and consultation, as a way of monitoring both the effectiveness of our policies and the quality of services provided.

In addition to the legislation requirements, there is now a new set of outcomes and indicators that we fully intend to meet and are set out in the Scottish Social Housing Charter.



A Charter summary is enclosed on page 24.

4. Who are the Association's customers?

- Tenants
- Sharing Owners
- Owners
- Housing Applicants
- Job Applicants
- Members of the Association
- Members of the public
- Contractors
- Consultants
- Local Authorities
- Other Housing Associations
- The Scottish Housing Regulator
- The Scottish Government
- Lenders; and so on

5. How we make it easy for you to participate

More detail on these options and our timescales is available in our Action Plan on pages X to X.

Publications

All information is automatically sent to tenants in the format they have requested eg. large print or on audio CD as per our Information in Different Formats Procedure. We make sure all published information is legible and in plain English.

We issue a quarterly newsletter, ChitChat, to all tenants, our sharing owners, owner occupiers, shareholders and other interested parties. ChitChat

contains information

their right to repairs,

about our activities, new services or schemes and tenants rights, such as



compensation and participation.

It invites comments on various issues, for example, proposed improvements, rent setting, new policies and policy changes.

It provides details of complaints we have received and the service improvements put in place as a result and tenant participation activity and the difference tenant involvement is making to our service. It contains a cut-off comment slip so that tenants and other customers can easily feedback to us.

When we asked tenants in our 2013 tenant satisfaction survey of 531 tenants, 73% chose our quarterly ChitChat newsletter as their preferred method of being kept informed. 91% of tenants told us they read our newsletter (with 57% always reading it and 34% sometimes reading it). This therefore continues to be one of our main ways of providing information on our services and decisions. 93% of tenants think that we are good at keeping them informed.

Listening to tenants' views

When tenants were asked in the 2013 survey how satisfied or dissatisifed they were that we listen to tenants' views and act upon them, **85% were satisfied** and 9% were not.

(6 % said neither/nor or did not have an opinion)

We issue an annual report to all tenants, and also sharing owners, owner occupiers, shareholders and other interested parties, with details of our performance. 37 %



of tenants told us in our 2013 Satisfaction Survey that they always read the annual report and 36% sometimes do. We will look to make the annual report more user friendly and interesting to try to increase this number.

Opportunities to participate in decision making When tenants were asked in the 2013 survey how satisfied or dissatisifed they were with the above, , **91% were satisfied** with the opportunities provided.

We issue an annual Owner Occupier newsletter to inform on our activities over the past year and consult on our plans for the future.

we them the opportunity to decide hether or not they wished to continue to be factored by Clydebark	And are need you have a program of the Region of the Regio	Over the coming weeks we will be
u Merr	ish all our owr y Christmas a erous New Ye	nd a

We use direct mailing and personal letters when appropriate. We received particularly high

responses to our Tenant Census 2012 (50%) and welfare reform letters sent in March 2013. From our 2013 tenant satisfaction survey, this is the second preferred format of keeping tenants informed (19%) after our ChitChat newsletter (73%).

Others and a second second	\sim			Quest	2013
Please provide us w enclosed example c Name Address	ith up to de ensus to se	ate deta e what	iils for yo informat	ur tenancy. Ion we are lo	Refer to the ooking for.
Hanne Tel. Na.		W	ork Tel. No.	Pastcode:	
			all Address		
Do you receive Housing Benefit lease list everyone who is cur sch person. The tenant (T) a sur home, please score out th	? (Yes or No)				
					tails in full for joint tenant in daughter, partner.
wgroter, miend or relagive		Is this per working? or No (if Y it Full or P ₁ Time?)	Yes of any es is Yes or	penson in receipt v Welfare Benefits? No (if Yes write benefit)	
ung reer, maend or relagive		working? or No (if 's it Futi or P	Yes of any es is Yes or	Phison in receipt Welfare Benefits? No (if Yes web.	Is the person under 16 years of age or under 18 and in full time education?
Ngi Cer, mend or relague		working? or No (if 's it Futi or P	Yes of any es is Yes or	Phison in receipt Welfare Benefits? No (if Yes web.	Is the person under 16 years of age or under 18 and in full time education?
Ngi Cer, mend or relague		working? or No (if 's it Futi or P	Yes of any es is Yes or	Phison in receipt Welfare Benefits? No (if Yes web.	Is the person under 16 years of age or under 18 and in full time education?
wgroter, miend or relagive		working? or No (if 's it Futi or P	Yes of any es is Yes or	Phison in receipt Welfare Benefits? No (if Yes web.	Is the person under 16 years of age or under 18 and in full time education?
		working? or No (if 's it Futi or P	Yes of any es is Yes or	Phison in receipt Welfare Benefits? No (if Yes web.	Is the person under 16 years of age or under 18 and in full time education?
(T) (T)		working? or No (if 's it Futi or P	Yes of any es is Yes or	Phison in receipt Welfare Benefits? No (if Yes web.	Is the person under 16 years of age or under 18 and in full time education?
(T) (T) (T) (T) (T) (T)		working? or No (F Y F Full or P ₁ Time?)	Vies of any lies is lies or which	phison is receipt. Welfare Benniss? No (if Ves wrbe benefit)	Is the person under 16 years of age or under 18 and in full time edications? Units or No
(T) (T)	U Your behalf in in	working? or No (F Y F Full or P ₁ Time?)	Vies of any lies is lies or which	phison is receipt. Welfare Benniss? No (if Ves wrbe benefit)	Is the person under 16 years of age or under 18 and in full time edications? Units or No

We have an informative, user friendly website full of useful information and opportunities to feedback on our service: www.clydebank-ha.org.uk.

Sections include Housing, Maintenance and Get Involved and we have a download area packed with useful publications. The website can be

translated into over 50 languages at the touch of a button. Welcome information is available on our website in Chinese, Polish and Somali - the top three minority waiting list groups.

(Search)	Manhaman Development & Weder Role Car	Center News Oater
Chapters is Respect	Welcome to Clydebank Housing Association.	
Apply for theoring	When each technic pio should hed all the education pio need about our Arenciation	Centre 81
Child fame for early for Improving	P you're interested in applying for a house or shared percentile. Men we encourage you to devening the second second second second second	Child have to that and others as an (another
Front Same in that we man along paying risk and	Select names or research neuron neuron. To check and and on the relevant section and incredibly one will give you all the adjustuation you are locating for.	
And Venders Halters	Homeour, if you have any goottions as conversely to make reparting any part of aur	For a bea home for safety visit from Unablying Fire & Reesser, Kick Sore
Mirch You? Not have be even referration	very pleased to heat their you. For details of here to contact on please click term.	too diewow BJQ1 Witanyi
ten our Roard Record Initiate for non-information		MEWAI Rodour Park 500: Anniwersary Calebration

We provide information leaflets so that our tenants are informed about both key policies and useful information. These are available at reception and on our website or can be sent on request, including:

- Becoming a Shareholder of the Association
- Our Customer Care Promises
- Making a Complaint
- Your Rent Charge
- What to do if you have Rent Arrears
- Housing Benefit

We will develop new summary leaflets as new or updated policies are approved.

General housing information packs are available in many languages from our reception or on request, including Chinese, Farsi, Gaelic and Kurdish, in topics such as:

- Housing Options
- Homelessness
- What is Council Tax?

We are developing a housing applicant newsletter as we want to give clear and effective information to our applicants on the services we provide, their options for becoming involved with us, how we allocate homes and the housing options available to them.

Supporting tenants/residents groups

We attend meetings of local tenants/ residents groups Staff at all levels regularly attend committee and public meetings of local tenants and residents groups to



discuss issues of shared interest and concern.

We hold public meetings whenever we think it's beneficial to our customers. Recently we held 3 meetings for our owners when new factoring legislation was introduced as well as sending information by post.

Knowledge

We are members of the Tenant Participation Advisory Service This means we are informed about new ideas, best practice, updates to legislation etc.



We train, update and support our staff and committee in tenant participation, communication and equalities issues by providing an induction covering these topics to all new members of staff, providing training for them at suitable intervals and keeping the internal Intranet up to date with details of tenant participation activities.

Customer Satisfaction

We regularly ask our tenants and other customers what they think about us and act on their feedback For example, in February 2013, an independent company carried out our 3-yearly Tenant Satisfaction Survey and spoke face to face to over 530 tenants about their views on our services. Results of this and our improvement plan will be issued to tenants in June 2013.

On an on-going basis we also ask:

- all new tenants what they thought of our sign up and allocations process
- all tenants who've reported a neighbour complaint what they thought of the complaints process
- all those who have been rehoused on medical groups how a move has helped them
- all those who have a rent arrears arrangement how they found the assistance provided to them
- all those who have had a major or cyclical repair how satisified they are with the repair/process
- 20% of those who have had a repair carried out what they think of the service received
- 50% of our rent paying tenants every three years if they think their rent is affordable
- all those who have purchased their home through the right to buy how satisfied they were with the process

We use the results received to continue to improve our service.

Customer Involvement

We have a dedicated point of contact to deal with tenant participation issues. All staff and Committee are actively committed to tenant participation, however, naturally staff from both Housing Management and Maintenance are mainly involved. **Case Study 1: Tenant Conference 2012** On 2 November, we held our 7th Tenant Conference in Centre81. A free crèche was offered and transport was provided.

22 tenants attended this all day event learned about welfare reform and the Scottish Social Housing Charter and the impact of both on tenants through a variety of workshops (4).

A play created by local group Mental Health in Mind on money matters was watched (2). We launched our new Housing Application pack and our Setting Up a Tenants' Group publication. Tenants enjoyed a hot lunch and refreshments, browsing information stalls from a variety of local and national organisations (1) and many tenants toured our community gardens and met with the Centre's community chickens (3)!

Comments from the evaluation forms received were very positive and our staff enjoyed another opportunity to meet with tenants.



However, our Communications Officer is our tenants' first point of contact and has designated responsibility for all Tenant Participation matters.

We have a growing consultation register with tenants and other customers wishing to be contacted for their views when we have new or updated policies for consultation.

We encourage new tenants to get involved When a tenant signs their tenancy agreement, we actively encourage them to become a shareholder of the Association. We also issue and explain a variety of information including their right to buy their home, how to make a complaint and their right to repair.

We encourage membership of our Association Local people can become shareholders by purchasing a £1.00 lifetime share of the Association. Shareholders can attend and vote at our Annual General Meeting and enjoy the sponsored social event afterwards. If elected, they can then join our voluntary Management Committee, who make all

We hold a free, informative tenant conference at least every two years so that all tenants and staff have the opportunity to come together and discuss issues of shared interest and concern.

the important decisions about the way we operate.

We hold public meetings, open days at the office and send individual letters and questionnaires with reply-paid envelopes when appropriate, for example, when we are proposing major repairs and improvements to tenants' homes.

We will continue with our 'open door' policy for all staff where tenants and other customers are easily able to visit, speak to or make appointments with staff members at all levels.

We strive to find different ways to engage with tenants and other customers for example, we use a texting service to remind tenants of their rent arrears arrangements, gas servicing appointments etc. and are looking at utilising the texting service for other uses. We are holding our first Big Lunch in July, a one-day community get together - an idea from the Eden Project. Also, we would hold focus groups and field trips where applicable. We held some 'Cuppa&Chat' afternoons in Whitecrook when residents wanted to discuss local issues.

Case Study 2

An old but worthy example...

In Radnor Park we consulted with tenants about proposed new central heating by:

- Having three open days in a local venue (1)
- Meeting regularly with the local tenants' group
- Organising a focus group of over 30 tenants and meeting with them on over 10 occasions
- Taking the focus group to Perth and Hutcheson Town to view similar systems
- Staff attending public meetings to provide presentations/gaining feedback
- Providing bi-monthly newsletters to consult and update (19 no.)

During our last inspection by the Scottish Housing Regulator (then Communities Scotland), (October 2004, point 6.16) they commented:

"A wide range of consultation was carried out before the project was committed. Residents we spoke to were strongly in favour of the project and very satisfied with the Association's work. This is an example of both innovation and positive practice".





Consulting tenants and tenants groups about changes in policy

Where there are **significant** changes proposed which would affect tenants we will:

- include article in newsletter (at first opportunity)
- take the proposed changes to the Management Committee for approval as consultation copy
- write out to tenants on consultation register and tenants group members with covering letter, consultation document and reply paid envelope
- include consultation document on website
- suggest/encourage focus groups where applicable
- give at least one calendar month to respond
- feedback results personally to tenants who responded
- feedback results to tenants as a whole via newsletter and website

Where there are **minor** changes proposed to policies or new policies created which may not significantly affect tenants we may still decide to:

- include article in newsletter (at first opportunity)
- write out to tenants on consultation register and tenants group members with covering letter, original or new policy and reply paid envelope
- give at least one calendar month to respond
- suggest/encourage focus groups where applicable
- feedback results personally to tenants who responded
- feedback results to tenants as a whole via newsletter and website

In our covering letter, we will include:

- how and when the final decision will be taken
- how the proposal will affect tenants
- how and within what timescale tenants can make their views known to us (around a month is just about right usually)
- details of how the tenants will receive feedback
- who's dealing with the consultation
- information on how and where to complain

Consulting with tenants groups about other issues

We will meet regularly with representatives of tenants' groups to discuss ideas, interests and concerns, exchange information and to advise them of pending policy changes.

This will usually be the Communication Officer's (CO) responsibility. The CO will then liaise with Senior Staff on any required actions.

Some real, recent examples of customer participation...

May 2013:

 Radnor Park 50th anniversary celebration dinner and 60's style celebrations with over 60 tenants (right)



- Radnor Park Multis Tenants and Residents Association (RPMTRA) training and information session
 - (RPMTRA) training and information session with Housing and Finance Managers
- Director and Maintenance Manager attend RPMTRA Annual General Meeting and provided information on the Scottish Social Housing Charter and reporting requirements

April 2013:

- Provided £1,280 annual grant to RPMTRA
- Consultation with RPMTRA and consultation register on 3 maintenance policies
- Addition of form on website for tenants and other customers to join our consultation register/ focus groups

March/April 2013:

- Liaison with tenants and RPMTRA over plans for 50th anniversary celebration of Radnor Park community
- Customer care policy consultation with RTO and consultation register

February 2013

• Independent Tenant Satisfaction Survey with 531 of our tenants

December 2012

• RPMTRA training session on rent and service charge setting with Housing Manager

November 2012

- All day tenant conference
- 3 public meetings with owners regarding factoring legislation changing

September 2012

 RPMTRA training on welfare reform with our Housing Manager

6. How we help tenants and other customers to become involved

There are many barriers which may affect how well our strategy works. Examples of some of these barriers are listed below. Also listed is our commitment to help deal with these barriers. We want our strategy to include all of our tenants and other customers.

When asked in our 2013 tenant satisfaction survey, in your view, does anything prevent you from getting involved with Clydebank Housing Association? 82% said there were no barriers whereas 18% (98 no.) offered some guidance as to why they were not getting involved; 36% were too ill/old, 30% were not interested, 27% said they had no time and 4% were housebound.

We are mindful that 44% of tenants said they had at least one person in the home with a disability. Our biggest non-British ethnic group of tenants are White Polish at 0.4%.

Low Income

People may be unable to attend meetings or events because of family responsibilities.

We will offer crèche facilities during meetings and events free of charge, or make available official childcare allowances to allow people to attend participation meetings and events.

Location of Meetings

Meeting places may not be suitable, for example, office accommodation upstairs may not be suitable for wheelchair users unless it has been adapted. We will try always to hold meetings in venues used by the community that are accessible, convenient and secure. Transport costs will be paid. We can also arrange home visits.

Times of Meetings

Meeting times may not be convenient for people, for instance, in an area with high unemployment meetings during the daytime may be preferred.

We will arrange meetings to take account of the needs and preferences of local households. Example: we changed our Tenant Conference 2009 format to allow access to those who could not make it during the daytime.

Jargon/Lack of Clarity

The use of complex agendas, housing terms or complex statistical data can lead to nonparticipation.

We will publish all information in a user-friendly style and a format that is clear and in plain English. We will provide training to give tenants appropriate knowledge.

Finance and Level of Resources

Lack of funds can mean that participation cannot develop properly.

We will make sure that adequate funds are provided to develop tenant participation, both within the Association and within our tenants group(s). Read more information in sections 8 and 9.

Attitude

How staff approach or respond to groups and individuals and the assumptions they make may hinder good working relationships.

We have a designated member of staff for contact on all tenant participation issues. We will provide training to staff on tenant participation, communication and equalities issues. We want to provide a service where every tenant and other customer has their individual needs recognised and is treated fairly and with respect.



Information Needs

A tenant or resident may need information in a different format.

We have an Information in Different Formats procedure which allows us to deal with any information need very quickly. We currently, automatically provide information to tenants in large print, on audio CD and in another language. We can provide information on computer disk, in Braille, in plain text and so on.

7. Staff Responsible for Tenant Participation

Staff from both Housing Management and Maintenance are those mainly involved in tenant participation activities. However, all staff and Committee are actively committed this strategy.

Staff acknowledge that tenants being involved in and shaping the delivery of services which affect them, means happier tenants and therefore happier staff!

Our Communications Officer has designated responsibility for all Tenant Participation matters.

8. Resources Needed for Tenant Participation

We take our commitment to tenant participation seriously and as such tenant participation is included in the budget for each staff section, for example, maintenance, housing management and so on.

Our budgets cover the cost of:

- Cost of writing, designing, printing and distributing newsletters
- Cost of other information produced for tenants
- Cost of tenant satisfaction surveys and other ways of getting feedback
- Cost of tenant participation events such as joint training and the tenant conference
- Cost of supporting/training tenants' groups
- Cost of extra activities this year to encourage tenant and other customer involvement
- Cost of staff involved in Tenant Participation activities

9. Supporting Tenants' Groups

Financial support

We will provide financial support to tenants' groups. However, groups who apply that are not registered as a Registered Tenants Organisation (RTO) with us or who are not working towards registration may be funded at a reduced rate or supported to a different degree, at our discretion.

Criteria for and description of payments is shown over the page.

All payments are made to contribute to the running costs of the tenants' group such as:

- Printing
- Stationery
- Travel costs
- Tea/coffee for meetings
- Venues for meetings/public meetings/AGMs
- Publicity/advertising
- Training/conference attendance
- Affiliation/membership
- Translation/interpreting

Support in kind

We will also support tenants' groups with resources in kind. Examples of this are detailed below:

- offering our premises for meetings
- putting together their tenants' newsletter and printing in either black & white (free) or colour (charged at cost price)
- putting together and printing smaller items such as meeting notices, agendas etc. (no charge if colour)
- administrative support (for example, taking minutes at meetings, photocopying, sending out mailings and booking meeting venues)
- including a tenant representative in our training programme (such as certain Committee training)

Special grant and training grant

We can provide Special and Training grants. However, there will be an element of 'reasonableness'; that the request fits in with the group's activity and does not duplicate grants already awarded.

	Amount/Formula	Criteria
Start Up	£200 for 0-250 tenancies represented	For groups aiming to set up as properly constituted body, the grants are for copying, postage, hire of meeting rooms, telephone calls and publicity
Grant	£300 for 251-500 tenancies represented	etc. Groups should fulfil a number of conditions such as representing one of our areas of operation, having a bank account or other recognised
	£400 for 501+ tenancies represented	agency that can hold the money; that basic records are kept and that the group can demonstrate that it is developing into a properly constituted and representative body. To make sure this criteria is being met, we may request to have a member of staff present at their meetings.
Annual Grant	£400 + £2.00 per tenant for 0-250 tenancies represented	Paid to properly constituted groups for running costs. Criteria for payment to include:
	£500 + £2.00 per tenant for 251-500 tenancies represented	 a constitution and membership policy in place and acceptable to the RSL to ensure the group is representative
	£600 + £2.00 per tenant for 501+ tenancies represented	 the group has regular General, Public and Committee meetings that no excessive surplus exists, which is defined as more than a years' grant amount
Special Grant	Not usually exceeding ₤750.00 in any one year	Applications will be considered for one off expenditure such as a conference attendance, purchase of equipment, organised excursions etc.*
Training Grant	Not usually exceeding ₤750.00 in any one year	Applications will be considered for attendance at training courses, seminars, conferences *

There should usually be a contribution of approximately 50% from the tenants' group. Further information is contained in the table above and within the application forms on pages 29 & 30.

10. Supporting Local Community Groups

We will support local community groups that have aims and objectives which are broadly similar to our own (see page 22) and whose members live mainly within our area of operation. Support could be offered in a variety of forms, for example:

Use of equipment

We will allow occasional use of equipment at the request of local community groups provided that:

- there is no disruption to the normal running of the office (access is restricted to office hours)
- equipment is not removed from the premises
- users of equipment are familiar with our Health and Safety policy and are trained to use the equipment properly

Regular use would not normally be encouraged but in any case it would be at the discretion of our Management Committee.

Use of facilities and accommodation

The Management Committee will consider each request individually and may give permission subject to the above.

Sharing information

Much of our information is already publicly available but we will provide copies of other policies and procedures on request. An exception to this may be if the other agency is a competitor for local stock or development sites and giving them information may be harmful to us.

Providing a donation

We may also provide a donation. Groups should contact us if they wish to ask for a donation for a specific purpose, which would be at the discretion of the Management Committee.

11. Registering your tenants' group with us

The criteria and an application for registering your group with us as a Registered Tenants Organisation (RTO) under the Housing (Scotland) Act 2001 are available on page 26.



Although we gather and take account of views of all tenants, other customers and tenants' groups, becoming an RTO means consultation with your group is covered under the Housing (Scotland) Act 2001 and requires us to take account of representations of your group.

(All tenants have the right to consultation as individuals through their Scottish Secure Tenancy Agreement).

A decision will be made on applications to register within 28 days of it being received (except during our Committee's summer break in July). This decision will generally be reached by the Finance, Staffing and General Purposes Sub Committee.

If accepted, the registration will last for three years. However, if there are significant changes to constitution, membership or area of operation, the RTO may be required to re-register.

Groups that do not wish to register

If a tenants' group decides not to register with us, we are very likely to still support and consult with the tenants' group, however, consultation with such a group would be outwith the statutory provisions of the Housing (Scotland) Act 2001.

12. Tenants and Residents Groups

It is recognised that groups may comprise a mix of tenants and residents. Residents are sharing owners and owner occupiers. There is nothing to prevent a mixed group of tenants and residents applying to be registered provided they meet the necessary criteria and provided there is a mechanism in place within the RTO for the views of the tenants of that landlord to be sought, for example, through tenant only surveys or tenant sub-committees.

Please note that as we receive no income from residents, we can only provide funding for the tenants represented by RTOs, as detailed within section 9.

Regional Networks

Regional Networks were set up in 2008 to help Registered Tenant Organisations (RTOs) engage with the Scottish Government on issues of national policy. There are 9 regional networks. No tenants' groups in West Dunbartonshire currently participate in the regional networks.

Their objective is to improve the housing and wellbeing of tenants and residents in Scotland. They work to promote tenants and residents interests in housing, planning, community regeneration, the environment and community safety.

Their website is www.regionalnetworks.org.uk.

13. Tenant Federations

The criteria for the registration of local tenant federations will be the same as for individual tenants' groups. A federation, which is registered with each of the landlords in its area of operation will have statutory rights to be consulted by those landlords on housing and related issues affecting the area served by its membership. This will give the federation direct involvement with such issues rather than through each of the member groups concerned.

As with tenants' groups representing tenants of two or more different landlords, it is essential that when consulted by a particular landlord, a tenants' federation can make sure that the views given are representative of the tenants of that landlord. Where a local federation does not have tenants of a particular landlord, there is no statutory duty on that landlord to register that federation.

West Dunbartonshire Tenants and Residents Organisation is the umbrella group for the tenants groups in West Dunbartonshire and is supported by the Council. Although our tenants' groups could not join this organisation, they would be happy to meet up with our tenants' groups. This would allow them to discuss what they are currently working on/doing and get advice from groups who may have had similar issues.

Hugh O'Donnell is the contact for the WDTRO: Email: hod2@talktalk.net Tel: 01389 732979

14. A Relationship Breakdown

The relationship between us and the groups that we work with should be mutually beneficial – the groups get to influence what is happening with their housing services and we get feedback from our tenants with which we can improve and develop our services.

If we feel there is a relationship breakdown between the Association and a tenants' group we will meet with the tenants' group to try to resolve the matter in the first instance.

We will involve mediation services, as recommended by the Scottish Housing Regulator, if both parties feel it would be beneficial.

However, if the relationship sours to the point where it is beyond retrieval, we have to make a judgement as to whether we should continue to support a group which may be working against us.

If we know a group is being consistently destructive, or doubts emerge as to how representative a group actually is, then we can suspend or end a relationship with that group. Please note this decision will not be taken lightly and will be a last resort. To help make this decision we would look at the group's constitution and whether it has been adhered to, whether regular meetings of the group are held, level of membership, attendance and so on.

15. Removal from the Register of Tenants' Organisations

An RTO can be removed from the Register in any of the following circumstances:

- The tenants' organisation no longer meets the registration criteria; or
- The tenants' organisation ceases to exist or does not operate; or
- There is mutual agreement between us and the tenants' organisation
- Relationship breakdown

Removal from the register will only take place after 21 days. Notice will be served in writing to all registered committee members of the organisation, setting out the reasons for removal and the effective date of removal.

16. Appeals

A tenants' group may appeal against our decision to:

- Not register the group; or
- Remove the group from the Register; or
- Not remove the group from the Register

You may appeal to our Management Committee in the event of the above. You should contact us immediately if you wish to appeal. The appeal process will be complete within three months. If you are not satisfied with the outcome, the appeals process will be considered by the Scottish Housing Regulator, on behalf of the Scottish Government.

17. Monitoring and Reviewing our Performance

It has been recognised by the Scottish Housing Regulator that landlords are good at recording their tenant participation activity but it is difficult to assess what the impact or effectiveness of this is on the way the landlords operate.

We will therefore look at ways to record not only tenant participation activity, but how that activity has impacted upon the Association. We recognise that being able to demonstrate real influence is important in sustaining tenant and other customer involvement.

Monitoring and reporting on our progress against our Action Plan (pages 14-21) should go some way to achieving this.

18. Review of the Strategy

This strategy will updated every year in consultation with our tenants' group(s) and fully reviewed every three years with tenants and other customers and tenants' groups. Next full review due by April 2016.



19. Contact Details



Clydebank Housing Association Ltd 77-83 Kilbowie Road Clydebank G81 1BL

Tel: 0141 941 1044 Fax: 0141 941 3448 **Contact: Communications Officer** E-mail: info@clydebank-ha.org.uk Web: www.clydebank-ha.org.uk

If you would like more information about tenant participation, there are many places to find it, including the following:



TPAS Scotland 74-78 Saltmarket Glasaow G1 5LD

Tel: 0141 552 3633 Fax: 0141 552 0073 E-mail: enquiries@tpasscotland.org.uk Web: www.tpasscotland.org.uk



TENANTS Tenants Information Service (TIS) Suite 335, Baltic Chambers 50 Wellington Street Glasgow G2 6HJ

Tel: 0141 248 1242 Fax: 0141 221 1911 E-mail: jmiller@tis.org.uk Web: www.tis.org.uk



Scottish Housing Regulator Highlander House 58 Waterloo Street Glasgow G2 7DA

Tel: 0141 271 3810 E-mail: shr@scottishhousingregulator.gsi.gov.uk Web: www.scottishhousingregulator.gov.uk

Our Promises 2013-2016

What	Why?
Policy	
 Where there are significant changes proposed which would affect tenants we will: include article in newsletter (at first opportunity) take the proposed changes to the Management Committee for approval as consultation copy write out to tenants on consultation register and tenants group members with covering letter, consultation document and reply paid envelope include consultation document on website suggest/encourage focus groups where applicable give at least one calendar month to respond feedback results personally to tenants who responded feedback results to tenants as a whole via newsletter and website 	 To meet our statutory duti To allow tenants and othe influence our decisions For tenants and other cust decisions For tenants and other cust So that we can use feedba
 Where there are minor changes proposed to policies or new policies created which may not signficantly affect tenants we may still decide to: include article in newsletter (at first opportunity) write out to tenants on consultation register and tenants group members with covering letter, original or new policy and reply paid envelope suggest/encourage focus group where applicable give at least one calendar month to respond feedback results personally to tenants who responded feedback results to tenants as a whole via newsletter and website 	 To allow tenants and other influence our decisions For tenants and other cust decisions For tenants and other cust So that we can use feedbox

Customer Satisfaction

Carry out a 3 yearly independent tenant satisfaction survey of approx. 50 % of the tenants	 To gather a wide variety of ten improve and shape our services how satisifed tenants are w the ethnic origin and disab whether tenants feel we ar services and decisions how satisfied tenants are w participate in our decision how satisfied tenants are w whether tenants feel tenants are w
Feedback results of 3 yearly independent tenant satisfaction survey and our improvement plan to tenants	To encourage future involveme policy and decision making
Carry out a 3 yearly owner occupier satisfaction surveys	To collect details on how satisfi service provided. Use feedback performance
Carry out a 100% survey of tenants who have reported anti social behaviour	To use feedback for continuous
Carry out a 100 % survey of tenants who have been rehoused due to medical need	To use feedback for continuous
We aim to carry out 100 % new tenant visits within 4-8 weeks and during visit carry out a survey of new tenants' experience of allocation of property and sign up.	To use feedback for continuous
	1



	Who's Responsible?	When?	Achieved?	Proof
s on tenant participation customers the opportunity to particpate in and mers to understand how and why we make	Relevant Senior Staff Member Communications Officer	Ongoing		
iners to understand now and wrig we make				
mers to understand the services we provide k received to improve services and performance				
customers the opportunity to particpate in and	Relevant Senior Staff Member	Ongoing		
mers to understand how and why we make	Communications Officer			
mers to understand the services we provide				
k received to improve services and performance				

ant satisfaction levels and useful information to including:	Communications Officer	March 2016		
rith the overall service we provide ility details of our tenants e good at keeping them informed about our				
ith the opportunities given to them to making process ith the quality of their home ith the repairs and maintenance service ith our management of their neighbourhood heir rent represents good value for money				
nt by demonstrating how feedback influences	Senior Staff Communications Officer	June 2013		
ed factored owners are with the factoring for continuous improvementof our services and	Finance Manager	November 2014		
improvement of our services and performance	Housing Manager	Ongoing		
improvement of our services and performance	Housing Manager	Ongoing		
improvement of our services and performance	Housing Manager	Ongoing		
			-	

Our Promises 2013-2016 continued

What?	Why?
Customer Satisfaction Continued	
Carry out an independent rent affordability study with 50 % of tenants who pay full rent	To use feedback for continuous impr
Carry out a 20% survey of tenants who have had a repair carried out	To use feedback for continuous imp
Carry out a 100 % survey of tenants who have had a major or cyclical repair	To use feedback for continuous impr
Carry out a 100 % survey of tenants who have purchased their home through the right to buy	To use feedback for continuous impr
Publications	
Ensure all published information is in a legible format and in plain English	So that tenants and other customer tenants and other customers find it
Publish and distribute 4 copies of ChitChat newsletter each year to tenants	So that tenants are receiving up to a and giving the opportunity for feeds
Publish complaints and compliments information in ChitChat newsletters and on our website	So that we are demonstrating that we received to improve our service
Include a feedback/comment slip in each ChitChat newsletter	To make it easy for tenants and other feedback on our services
Provide Tenant Participation progress reports in ChitChat newsletters	Demonstrate to tenants the postive delivery
Publish and distribute an annual report each year with details of key performance indicators	Improved tenant and other custome performance
Publish and distribute an annual Owner Occupier newsletter each year	To inform on our activities over the p
Review our general information leaflets at reception/on the website on an annual basis	To ensure the information our tenan up to date
Review our information leaflets provided at reception in other formats on an annual basis	To enhance opportunities for partici minority groups
Develop new information leaflets in other formats as required	
Develop maintenance policy summary leaflets for reception	Provide tenants with information or
Develop a newsletter for our housing applicants	 To lead in terms of good practice To give clear and effective inform provide, their options for becom the housing options available to
Develop an innovative and cost effective new tenants handbook in conjunction with tenants and other customers	To provide new tenants with valuab maintaining their tenancy and to m
In conjunction with tenants and other customers, develop a suitable report format for reporting the Scottish Housing Regulator's assessment of our performance to our tenants and other customers	To ensure tenants and other custom report
To update and provide Taking a Wider View information booklet to all tenants and all customers	To signpost residents and customers together with Clydebank Housing As services



	Who's Responsible?	When?	Achieved?	Proof
ovement of our services and performance	Housing Manager	November 2015		
ovement of our services and performance	Maintenance Manager	Ongoing		
ovement of our services and performance	Maintenance Manager	Ongoing		
ovement of our services and performance	Finance Manager	Ongoing		
s is excluded from our services and to ensure easy to communicate with us	All Staff	Ongoing		
ate information on our services and activities ack and participation	Communications Officer	Quarterly		
ve value complaints and that we use feedback	Depute Director Communications Officer	Quarterly		
er customers to make complaints and provide	Communications Officer	Quarterly		
impact that getting involved has on service	Communications Officer	Quarterly		
r awareness of Association activities and	Communications Officer	Each year - by October		
ast year and consult on our plans for the future	Finance Officer Maintenance Manager	Each December		
ts and other customers receive is relevant and	Communications Officer	May 2014		
pation and involvement amongst ethnic	Senior Staff			
	Communications Officer	Ongoing		
our maintenance service	Maintenance Manager Communications Officer	December 2013		
e nation to our applicants on the services we ng involved with us, how we allocate homes and them	Housing Manager Communications Officer			
e, useful information to assist them in aximise	Housing Manager Maintenance Manager Communications Officer	December 2013		
ers have a say in the design and content of the	Senior Staff Communications Officer	October 2013		
to local groups and national agencies who, sociation, can offer supportive advice and	Communications Officer	June 2013		

Our Promises 2013-2016 continued

What?	Why?
Staff & Committee	
Have a dedicated point of contact for all tenant participation matters	To ensure consistency of service to te
Provide all new members with an induction on tenant participation and communication	• To engrain from the outset our co it easy to to participate in and inf
Provide training to staff and committee at suitable intervals on equalities issues and tenant participation	 To provide a service where every t needs recognised and is treated fe To engrain from the outset our co finding it easy to to participate in
To ensure the residents group section of the staff & committee internal Intranet is kept up to date with activity, agendas, minutes etc.	The Intranet is available to both staff communications internally benefits te awareness of the residents group issu
Continue with our 'open door' policy for all staff	To allow tenants and other customers able to easily visit, speak to or make o
General Knowledge/Continuous Development	
Continue membership of Tenant Participation Advisory Service (TPAS)	To benefit from TPAS' 30 years of exp organisations, communities and land in our services
Regularly attend Tenant Participation Workers' Forums, hosted by TPAS	To benefit from experiences of others examples of good practice
Provide regular Tenant Participation progress reports to the Management Committee	Keep Management Committee inform involvement, developments in good p
Review this Tenant Participation Strategy every year (minor) and every 3 years (major review)	Keep document up to date. Ensure co Housing Acts(s) and Scottish Social H
Review our resource requirements for tenant participation in consultation with tenants each year	To ensure we have the resources in pla responsibilities regarding tenant part
Review our Information in Different Formats procedure every 3 years	To recognise individual's needs and e by being able to deal immediately wi in a way that allows them access to ir
Maintain and update our register of customers who require information in different formats	Ensure equal opportunities for partici ethnic minority groups
Explore technological advancements in our housing management and maintenance software	 To improve communications with applicable) To improve overall service to tena
In conjunction with tenants and other customers, develop our approach to tenants becoming involved in assessing our performance	To ensure that suitable options are av become involved in assessing our per
Develop the communications features on our website and our use of social media	To enhance opportunities for particip tenants and other customers
Develop the Get Involved section of our website	To ensure there is up to date informati improve communications with our ten
Develop a mutual exchange board on the website	To provide access to this housing opti



	Who's Responsible?	When?	Achieved?	Proof
		1	1	
nants and other customers	Communications Officer	Ongoing		
mmitment to tenants and other customers finding luence our decisions	Senior Staff communications Officer	Ongoing		
enant and other customer has their individual airly and with respect mmittment to tenants and other customers and influence our decisions	Senior Staff	Annually		
and management committee. Better nants and specifically in this case raises es, action and	Senior Staff Communications Officer	Ongoing		
to get the information the need from us by being appointments with staff members at all levels	All Staff	Ongoing		
orights and knowledge from working with tor ant	Einanco Managori	April 2014		
erience and knowledge from working with tenant lords to improve tenant and resident involvement	Finance Manager/ Communications Officer	April 2014 April 2015		
working in the sector and gain and share	Communications Officer			
ned on the progress and impact of tenant ractice and progress against this action plan	Communications Officer	9 times per year		
mpliance with requirements of legislation, ousing Charter indicators and outcomes	Communications Officer	April 2014		
ace to meet and exceed our statutory cipation	Finance Manager Communications Officer	December 2013		
nsure fair access to housing and housing services th customers who have information requirements, nformation.	Communications Officer	April 2014		
pation and involvement amongst disabled and	All staff	Ongoing		
our tenants (and other customers where	All Senior Staff Communications Officer	Ongoing		
nts (and other customers where applicable)				
ailable for tenants and other customers to formance at a level they feel comfortable with	Senior Staff	March 2014		
ation and improve communications with our	Communications Officer	April 2014		
on to enhance opportunities for participation and ants and other customers	Communications Officer	September 2013		
on for people looking for housing	Housing Manager Communications Officer	September 2013		

Our Promises 2013-2016 continued

NA/L+2	M/L-2
What?	Why?
Supporting tenants groups	
To strive to attend all meetings of tenants groups that we are invited to and to offer support, advice and training as required	So that the tenants group finds it eas they need about it, how and why we r
Provide annual grant and annual resources in kind committment to tenants groups in line with this strategy	To confirm our support to these group
Invite tenants group to have a page on our website, in our Get Involved section	To raise awareness of tenants groups information and contact details for in
Customer Involvement	
Continue to ask within our Housing Application form whether applicants are happy for us to ask for their views on our service	To make applicants aware from the out influence our decisions
Continue to ask within our tenant sign up process whether tenants are happy to join our consultation register	To ensure that we can consult with as reiterate our commitment to consulta
Events	
To record the details of customers who have fed back to the Association throughout the year and invite them to an annual 'thank you' event	To thank tenants and other customers build relationships to encourage suste
Hold a free informative tenant conference every two years	To give tenants a wider range of oppo express their views
Hold a Big Lunch event as introduced by the Eden Project	To bring the community together for
Hold and Annual General Meeting and sponsored social event	To keep shareholders informed of per
Hold a variety of ad-hoc consultion/other tenant and other customer events as applicable	To provide tenants and other custome opportunities to participate as possib



	Who's Responsible?	When?	Achieved?	Proof
y to communicate with us and get the information nake decisions and about the services we provide	Senior Staff Communications Officer	Ongoing		
s and provide recognition of the work that they do	Communications Officer	April 2014 April 2015		
operating in our area and provide their erested tenants or other customers	Communications Officer	September 2013		
utset that they are invited to participate in and	Housing Manager	Ongoing		
many of our other customers as possible and tion	Housing Manager			
	·			
who have contributed for their assistance and to involvement	Communications Officer	November 2013		
rtunities to participate in policy reviews and	Senior Staff Communications Officer	October 2014		
a few hours of fun, food and friendship	Communications Officer Centre81 Co-ordinator	July 2013		
ormance and encourage participation	Finance Manager Communications Officer	June 2013 June 2014 June 2015		
ers with as much information and as many	Dependent on subject matter	As and when required		

Appendix 1: About Us

How we operate

So that you can participate fully, it's important that you know a bit about how we operate.

We are managed by a Management Committee of local volunteers, over half of whom are tenants. They make all the important decisions about how we operate and employ staff to carry out day-to-day duties and make recommendations to them.

The Management Committee meets monthly and the sub-committees meet; Housing Management and Maintenance (every two months); Finance, Staffing and General Purposes (quarterly).

Legislation

The way we work is governed by lots of legislation, including, but not limited to:

Housing (Scotland) Acts 2010, 2001 and 1987 Property Factors (Scotland) Act 2011 Scottish Social Housing Charter Equality Act 2010 Data Protection Act 1998 Health and Safety at Work Acts Industrial & Provident Societies Act 1965 Charity & Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005

The majority of the policy changes we propose are to do with changes in legislation.

Where we have come from...

We were established by local residents in 1984 and working in partnership with the Housing Corporation and with the Local Authority, set out to improve housing and regenerate the central and east areas of the town. This shows that tenant/resident participation was at the very core of our set-up! We were registered with the Housing Corporation in January 1985, so will celebrate 30 years in January 2015.

In the earlier years, our development work concentrated on the modernisation of the tenements in the town centre. When this work was finished, we embarked on a programme of new building to provide more houses and flats for rent and for shared ownership.

In 1999, we acquired over 750 houses in Clydebank from the previous landlord, Scottish Homes, increasing our stock to over 1,100 houses and flats at that time, catering for all types of people including the elderly, disabled people and those with special needs.

We are registered Scottish Charity No. SC033962.

Where we are now...

Today our aim to provide good quality, affordable housing remains to the forefront. The Scottish Housing Regulator has us as low engagement which means they are happy with the financial and performance information provided to me and with our current performance.. Our aim is to be everyone's first choice for housing.

Our objectives

- To provide good quality, affordable housing, which meets the changing needs of our customers.
- To manage the houses provided, in a sensitive and cost effective manner, for the benefit of the local community.
- To provide a first class maintenance service, which offers value for money and ensures the comfort and safety of our residents.
- To work in partnership with others, maximising opportunities for regeneration in Clydebank.
- To enable our customers to influence our policy and to participate in decisions, which may affect them.
- To ensure that our resources are adequate to deliver our objectives
- To promote social inclusion by applying principles of equality and diversity to everything we do.

Our role as an employer

As we grow, our role as an employer becomes more



significant. We now have over 30 staff. We are committed to equal opportunities and received Positive about Disabled People accreditation again in December 2012. Our track record in staff training and development earned us Investor in People status for the sixth time in 2012. We have maintained our commitment to the standard longer than any other housing association.

Our wider role

We embrace the 'wider role' we have in our community. This wider role is where we aim to improve the social, economic and environmental circumstances of our community, in addition to our primary role of building and maintaining homes.



An example of our wider role is the popular regeneration centre in Whitecrook, Centre81, which we own and

manage. The Centre runs a variety of classes for young and old throughout the week. Local community groups can hire centre facilities for discounted rates. There's also a café, community garden and community chickens. With funding from the Scottish Government's People and Communities Fund (PCF) we have employed a local person as a part-time garden co-ordinator until 2015.

Appendix 2: Legislation and the Scottish Social Housing Charter

The Legislation

The Housing (Scotland) Act 2001 (the Act) provides a legal framework for tenant participation to take place in Scotland. All local authorities and Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) such as housing associations have a number of new legal duties regarding tenant participation. These duties are outlined in Part 2 of the Act (Sections 23, 53, 54, 55 and 106).

The Housing (Scotland) Act 2010 refocussed but does not supersede the Tenant Participation obligations of the Housing (Scotland) Act 2001.

Section 23 (The right to a tenancy agreement and information)

Tenants have a right to a written tenancy agreement and to receive information on:

- their right to buy provisions
- our complaints procedure

Before becoming a tenant, we must provide information on their right to buy and their responsibilities if they buy their home.

If tenants request it, they must be provided with information about:

- the terms of their tenancy
- our tenant participation strategy
- our rent setting and other charges policies
- our allocations policy
- our repairs and maintenance policy
- the decision making process on housing related matters
- obligations of the tenant if they exercise their right to buy

Section 53 (Tenant Participation)

This section requires local authorities and RSLs to have a tenant participation strategy. It also places a duty on them to maintain a register of tenants groups meeting certain criteria. It sets out the criteria for registration or removal from the register and the procedures to be followed in relation to registration and removal. It also provides a right of appeal for such groups in relation to registration and removal from the register.

Section 54 (Consultation with Tenants and Registered Tenant Organisations)

This section outlines the provision to enable both individual tenant and registered tenants groups to be consulted by the landlord on issues affecting them. It also requires the landlord to take account of representations by the tenants or tenants groups, within a reasonable time scale. In addition, it sets out the relevant policies to which this applies, such as our allocation policy or rent setting policy.

What is Tenant Participation (TP)?

This definition from the National Strategy for Tenant Participation – Partners in Participation (1999) we feel is still a good way to sum up tenant participation:

"Tenant participation is about tenants taking part in decision making processes and influencing the decisions about housing policies, housing conditions and housing (and related) services. It is a two way process which involves the sharing of information, ideas and power. Its aim is to improve the standard of housing conditions and services".

This snippet from the Guide to Successful Tenant Participation – Scottish Executive (2005) is also useful:

"Effective participation leads to better and more responsive management and this helps inform decisions about improving service delivery and providing value for money".

The Scottish Social Housing Charter

The Charter was approved by the Scottish Parliament in March 2012 and came into effect on 1 April 2012. There was considerable consultation with tenants in social housing, social landlords, homeless people, other stakeholders and the Scottish Housing Regulator.

The purpose of the Charter is to improve the quality and services that social landlords provide by:

- stating clearly what tenants and other customers can expect from social landlords, and helping them hold landlords to account
- focusing the efforts of social landlords on achieving outcomes that matter to their customers
- providing a basis for the Scottish Housing



Regulator to assess and report on how well landlords are performing and therefore identify areas of strong performance and areas needing improvement

The Charter has 7 sections containing 16 outcomes and standards that apply to social landlords. 14 apply to us as 2 only applicable to Councils.

We go some way to proving we meet these outcomes by reporting to the Scottish Housing Regulator on 31 of the 37 indicators (6 only applicable to Councils).

Here is a summary of the 14 outcomes that are applicable to us:

The customer/landlord relationship

1. Equalities - Social landlords perform all aspects of their housing services so that every tenant and other customer has their individual needs recognised, is treated fairly and with respect, and receives fair access to housing and housing services.

2. Communication - Social landlords manage their businesses so that tenants and other customers find it easy to communicate with their landlord and get the information they need about their landlord, how and why it makes decisions and the services it provides.

3. Participation - Social landlords manage their businesses so that tenants and other customers find it easy to participate in and influence their landlord's decisions at a level they feel comfortable with.

Housing quality and maintenance

4. Quality of housing - Social landlords manage their businesses so that tenants' homes, as a minimum, meet the Scottish Housing Quality Standard (SHQS) by April 2015 and continue to meet it thereafter, and when they are allocated, are always clean, tidy and in a good state of repair.

5: Repairs, maintenance and improvements -

Social landlords manage their businesses so that tenants' homes are well maintained, with repairs and improvements carried out when required, and tenants are given reasonable choices about when work is done.

Neighbourhood and community

6: Estate management, anti-social behaviour, neighbour nuisance and tenancy disputes - Social landlords, working in partnership with other agencies, help to ensure that tenants and other customers live in well-maintained neighbourhoods where they feel safe.

Access to housing and support

7, 8 and 9: Housing options - Social landlords work together to ensure that people looking for housing get information that helps them make



informed choices and decisions about the range of housing options available to them, tenants and people on housing lists can review their housing options. Social landlords ensure that people at risk of losing their homes get advice on preventing homelessness.

10: Access to social housing - Social landlords ensure that people looking for housing find it easy to apply for the widest choice of social housing available and get the information they need on how the landlord allocates homes and their prospects of being housed.

11: Tenancy sustainment - Social landlords ensure that tenants get the information they need on how to obtain support to remain in their home; and ensure suitable support is available, including services provided directly by the landlord and by other organisations.

Getting good value from rents and service charges 13: Value for money - Social landlords manage all aspects of their businesses so that tenants, owners and other customers receive services that provide continually improving value for the rent and other charges they pay.

14 and 15: Rents and service charges - Social landlords set rents and service charges in consultation with their tenants and other customers so that a balance is struck between the level of services provided, the cost of the services, and how far current and prospective tenants and other customers can afford them, tenants get clear information on how rent and other money is spent, including any details of individual items of expenditure above thresholds agreed between landlords and tenants.



We can give your organisation support in getting together all of the information below. Please contact Sinéad Boyle, our Communications Officer, if you need support with this.

We will maintain a Register of Tenants/Residents Organisations (RTOs). **The criteria for registration is:**

1. The organisation must have a publicly available written constitution that sets out:

- Its objectives and area of operation;
- How people can become members of the organisation;
- The way the committee will work;
- How people can become committee members/ office bearers;
- How the business of the organisation will be conducted;
- How decisions will be reached democratically;
- How funds will be managed;
- Arrangements for public meetings;
- Arrangements for an annual general meeting (AGM);
- How changes can be made to the constitution;
- Its commitment to the promotion of equal opportunities;
- Its commitment to the promotion of the housing and housing related interests of tenants

2. The organisation must have a committee that:

- Is elected at an AGM (after the first year);
- Has at least three members;
- Can co-opt others onto the committee during the course of the year;
- Has elected office bearers;
- Can show that decisions are reached democratically; and
- Promotes equal opportunities

Housing Associations. Registered in Scotland at the above address

- 3. The organisation must operate within:
- A defined area which includes housing stock owned and managed by us; or
- Membership of the organisation and participation in its activities must be open to all eligible tenants within its defined area of operation

4. The organisation must have appropriate accounting records and present an audited, annual, financial statement to their AGM.

5. The organisation must demonstrate that it is committed to representing the interests of its members and that, when consulted by the registered landlord, it can represent the views of its members who are tenants of the registered landlord in its defined area of operation.

6. The organisation must accept and abide by our statement of ethical standards

Application for Registration of Tenants' Organisations (RTOs)

An application for registration is available on page 27. The organisation must also give us the following information:

- The written constitution;
- The names and contact details of committee members (identifying the office bearers); and
- A statement which demonstrates 5.

It is recognised that groups may comprise a mix of tenants and residents. There is nothing to prevent a mixed group of tenants and residents applying to be registered provided they meet the necessary criteria and provided there is a mechanism in place within the RTO for the views of the tenants of that landlord to be sought, for example, through tenant only surveys or tenant sub-committees.

Remember if you need any help or clarification, please contact Sinéad at the office.





Please read our leaflet 'Registering Your Tenants/Residents Organisation' before completing this application. All information asked for should be included with this application.

Name of Organisation:	
Contact Name:	
Contact Address*:	
Contact Telephone No:	E-mail:
Approximate Number of Members:	
Area of Operation:	
Chairperson:	
Vice Chairperson:	
Secretary:	
Treasurer:	
Meetings usually held (date and time):	

We enclose our constitution, names and contact details of committee (identifying office bearers) and a statement which demonstrates no. 5 of the criteria:

Please note that the above details will be published in our publicly available Register of Tenants and Residents Organisations. *If you would prefer, the address can be care of the Association for the purpose of the register. By signing, we accept and will abide by the Association's statement of ethical standards.

Signed:	
-	
Position Held:	Date:





Register of Registered Tenants Organisations

As at May2013

Name of organisation:	Radnor Park Multis Tenants and Residents Association
Contact person:	Rosemary McCormack, Secretary
Contact address:	6D Lusset View, Radnor Park G81 3DA
Contact number:	0141 562 5219
Area of operation:	Radnor Park Multi Storeys (7 no.)
Chairperson:	Tom McCormack
Vice Chairperson:	Tom Winter
Treasurer:	James Stewart
Secretary:	Rosemary McCormack
Minute Secretary:	Derek McKenzie
Meetings held (usual time/date):	Committee meetings held on a Monday, monthly generally excluding July and December
Approx. tenants represented:	390
Approx. sharing/owners represente	d:2
Date of application to register:	22 June 2005
Date of acceptance to register:	23 August 2005
Dates of lastest re-registration:	26 February 2013





Application for Training Grant

Please read Section 9 before completing this application

Name of organisation:

Contact name:

Have you registered with us?

Purpose of grant:

Signed.

Please provide all relevant details below:

For attendance at training/seminars/conferences, you will need to include the date, time, purpose and host of the event etc. Please note that receipts will be required for all training grant provided.

Total cost:	
Amount of grant requested:	
Group contribution (should be approx. 50%):	
Position:	Data

Signed.	10310	011.	Bute.
Signed:	Positi	on:	Date:
For Office Use Only	Approved: Amount: Decided by: Group notified:	YES/NO	





Application for Special Grant

Please read Section 9 before completing this application

Name of organisation:

Contact name:

Have you registered with us?

Purpose of grant:

Please provide all relevant details below:

For the purchase of equipment, you will need to include the use of equipment, where it will be located, who will have access to it and so on. For holding an event, you will need to include the date, time, target audience, venue, transport requirements, whether money will be collected from participants etc. For grant for any other reason, please check with us what details are required. Please note that receipts will be required for all special grant provided.

Total cost:	
Amount of grant requested:	
Group contribution (should be approx. 50%):	

Signed:	Position:	Date:
Signed:	Position:	Date:
For Office Use Only	Approved: YES/ Amount: Decided by: Group notified:	NO





We would like tenants and other customers to find it easy to participate in and influence our decisions, at whatever level they feel comfortable.

Tenants and other customers can get involved in our decision-making process in many ways. We want to shape our services to reflect their views.

If you would like to get involved and give your views on how we can improve any aspect of our service, PLEASE don't hesitate to get in touch or complete and return this form to us.

Name:	
Address:	
Contact Telephone No:	
E-mail address:	
Р	lease tick as many as you wish
I/we would like to join the Association's consultation register (if you want to have a say in how we do things)	
I/we would like to be invited to any focus group meetings the Association (to discuss specific aspects of our service)	ation has
I/we would like information/help about setting up a tenants group (to find out about the benefits)	
I/we would like information on becoming a shareholder (to attend our Annual General Meeting)	

Signed:

Date:



Sample annual grant letter



clydebank housing association

SB/

April 2013

Sample annual grant letter 2013/2014

Dear Secretary

Offer of Grant: 2013/2014

On behalf of Clydebank Housing Association (the "Association"), I offer to X Tenants and Residents Association, (the "Tenant/Residents Group") a grant to assist you with the running of your Tenant/Residents Group.

I enclose the Assessment of Resources formula which shows how we will provide financial support to new and existing Tenant/Residents Groups (Appendix 1).

Payment is subject to the following conditions:

Level of Grant

The grant payable to the Tenant/Residents Group will be £1,280.00, as we have 390 tenants in the Radnor Park area.

Grant Payment Period

The grant will be paid by cheque, on receipt of the Acceptance of Offer of Grant: 2013/2014.

General Conditions for Payment 1.

- The Tenant/Residents Group provides a list of its committee members and office bearers to the 1.1 Association, and advises them within two months, of any change.
- 1.2 The Tenant/Residents Group has a constitution and membership policy in place which is acceptable to the Association in terms of tenant representation.
- 1.3 The Tenant/Residents Group holds regular General, Public and Committee meetings, minutes of which should be provided to the Association within a reasonable timescale.
- 1.4 That no excessive surplus exists from a previous year.
- 1.5 That the Tenant/Residents Group will manage this money responsibly with the benefit of the whole community in mind at all times.

Clydebank Housing Association Limited

77-83 Kilbowie Road | Clydebank G81 1BL

🛐 | 0141 941 1044 | info@clydebank-ha.org.uk | www.clydebank-ha.org.uk | 📴





INVESTORS

IN PEOPLE

lator Registration No. 86. Friendly Societies Registered No. 2191RS. Member of the Scottish Federation of Housing Associations. Registered with the Scottish Housing R Scottish Charity No. SC033962, Registered Property Factor No. PF000231, Registered in Scotland at the above address

1.6 That the Tenant/Residents Group is registered or working towards registration as a Registered Tenants Organisation with the Association.

(Tenant/Residents Groups not registering or not working towards registration may be funded at a reduced rate).

- 1.7 The Tenants/Residents Group provide accounts or financial statements to the Association within six months of the end of the financial year in March.
- 1.8 The Tenant/Residents Group make an effort to raise funds for themselves.
- 1.9 The Tenant/Residents Group will not make payments in lieu of time or work carried out by Committee Members as this shall be done on a voluntary basis. Only reasonably incurred expenses shall be paid to Committee Members.
- 1.10 The Tenant/Residents Group have an account in their name with a bank or other recognised agency.

2. Default

In the event of any default, the Association may refuse grant payments and shall be entitled to recover all or part of the grant already provided. The occurrence of one or more of the following events will be deemed to be a default:

- 2.1 If the Association is in any doubt as to the validity of the Tenant/Residents Group's continuing eligibility for grant, including uncertainties relating to the validity of use of funding.
- 2.2 If the Tenant/Resident Group ceases operation.
- 2.3 If any information provided to the Association by the Tenant/Residents Group for grant to be awarded is found to be false or misleading to any extent.

Please note that your Tenant/Residents Group may apply for special or training grants, as detailed in Appendix 1. Please note that resources in kind can also be provided. A separate letter will be sent to you about this.

Please complete and return the acceptance to our office and we will send your grant on receipt.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any queries.

Yours sincerely Clydebank Housing Association

Sinéad Boyle Communications Officer

Enc: acceptance form



Sample annual grant letter continued

Acceptance of Offer of Grant: 2013/2014

Date: _____

Sinéad Boyle Communications Officer Clydebank Housing Association 77-83 Kilbowie Road Clydebank G81 1BL

Dear Sinéad

On behalf of X Tenants and Residents Association I formally accept the conditions of the offer of grant, totalling \pounds , for 2013/2014 and look forward to receiving the grant on receipt of this acceptance.

Committee Member 1 (printed):	
Position:	
Signed:	
Date:	
Committee Member 2 (printed):	
Position:	
Signed:	
Date:	



Appendix One Financial Support Provided by Clydebank Housing Association

	Amount/Formula	Criteria
Start Up Grant	£200 for 0-250 tenancies represented £300 for 251- 500 tenancies represented £400 for 501+ tenancies represented	For groups aiming to set up as properly constituted body, the grants are for copying, postage, hire of meeting rooms, telephone calls and publicity etc. Groups should fulfil a number of conditions such as representing one of our areas of operation, having a bank account or other recognised agency that can hold the money; that basic records are kept and that the group can demonstrate that it is developing into a properly constituted and representative body. To make sure this criteria is being met, we may request to have a member of staff present at their meetings.
Annual Grant	$ \begin{array}{c} \pounds 400 + \pounds 2.00 \\ \text{per tenant for} \\ 0-250 \text{ tenancies} \\ \text{represented} \\ \pounds 500 + \pounds 2.00 \text{ per} \\ \text{tenant for 251-} \\ 500 \text{ tenancies} \\ \text{represented} \\ \pounds 600 + \pounds 2.00 \\ \text{per tenant for} \\ 501 + \text{tenancies} \\ \text{represented} \\ \end{array} $	 Paid to properly constituted groups for running costs. Criteria for payment to include: - a constitution and membership policy in place and acceptable to the RSL to ensure the group is representative - the group has regular General, Public and Committee meetings - that no excessive surplus exists, which is defined as more than a years' grant amount
Special Grant	Not usually exceeding £750.00 in any one year	Applications will be considered for one off expenditure such as a conference attendance, purchase of equipment, organised excursions etc.*
Training Grant	Not usually exceeding £750.00 in any one year	Applications will be considered for attendance at training courses, seminars, conferences *

* With Special and Training Grants there will be an element of 'reasonableness'; that the request fits in with the group's activity and does not duplicate grants already awarded. There should usually be a contribution of approximately 50% from the Tenant/Residents Group

Sample annual resources in kind letter



clydebank housing association

SB/

April 2013

Sample Resources in Kind letter 2013/2014

Dear Secretary

Support in Kind for Tenant/Residents Groups

Just a short note to let you know that we can provide resources in kind to your Tenant/Residents Group, as well as financial support, such as:

- a) providing plain A4 paper
- b) providing labels/envelopes
- c) free daytime use of our board room for meetings/training (seats 20 people)
- d) printing your letterhead paper
- e) providing additional black and white printing on agreement (colour provided at cost price)
- f) including a member of the your Association in our training programme (for example, certain Committee training)

It is stated in our Tenant Participation Strategy that we can only provide the above (c - f) where it does not interfere with the day to day running of the Association.

Please contact me if you would like more information or to take advantage of any of the above forms of support.

Yours sincerely Clydebank Housing Association

Sinéad Boyle Communications Officer

Clydebank Housing Association Limited

77-83 Kilbowie Road | Clydebank G81 1BL

🛐 | 0141 941 1044 | info@clydebank-ha.org.uk | www.clydebank-ha.org.uk | 📴







INVESTORS

IN PEOPLE

Registered with the Scottish Housing Regulator Registration No. 86. Friendly Societies Registered No. 2191RS. Member of the Scottish Federation of Housing Associations. Scottish Charity No. SC033962. Registered Property Factor No. PF000231. Registered in Scotland at the above address.